INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT MAﬁN!AN&MBéQMW
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  *

TO THE MEMBERS OF SCHOOLGURU EDUSERVE PRIVATE LIMTED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SCHOOLGURU
EDUSERVE PRIVATE LIMTED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31%
March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information {(herein
after referred to as “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with India Accounting Standards as prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read
with the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) rules, 2015 as amended (“Ind AS™) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2019, and loss, and total comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of our Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Information other than Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thercon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises of the Director’s Report, (but does not include
the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon). The other information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
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assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including total
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0,

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion .Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate”.
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatemient
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resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements tepresent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent
applicable that:
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

a) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

b) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account, o




¢) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

d) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2019 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

e) Since the company’s turnover is less than fifty crores and the borrowings from the
banks or financial institutions or anybody corporate at any point of time during the
financial year has not exceeded rupees twenty five crores, reporting on the
adequacy of Internal financial controls over financial reporting is not required
vide MCA notification dated June 13, 2017,

f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ifi) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Manian & Rao,
Chartered Accountants
FRN; 0019838

Paresh Daga '
Partner
M.No. 211468

Place: Bangalore
Date: 24™ May, 2019



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items
in a phased manner, in our opinion, the same is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) The Company does not have any immovable properties or freehold or leasehold
land and building and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (i) (c) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company is in the business of providing education support service. Accordingly,
it does not hold any physical inventoties. Thus reporting on paragraph 3(ii) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not
given loans, investments and guarantees to which the provisions of section 185 and
186 of the companies Act, 2013 apply.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year. The Company does not have any unclaimed
deposits.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under sub section {1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the Services rendered by
the Company and therefore provision of section 3{vi) of the order is not applicable to
the company.




(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

()

()

(i)

(xiil)

(xiv}

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

{(a} The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Labour Welfare Fund, Professional
Tax, Employee’s State Insurance, Goods & Service Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

{b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Setvice Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢} There were no dues of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Labour Welfare Fund,
Professional Tax, Employee’s State Insurance, Service Tax, Goods & Service Tax,
cess which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2019 on account of
disputes.

In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions, banks and government. The Company has not issued any debentures
during the year.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

The Company is a Private Limited Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xi)
of the order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xii} of
the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.




(xv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Manian & Rao,
Chartered Accountants
FRN ; 001983S

Paresh Daga
Partner
M.No. 211468

Place : Bangalore
Date : 24" May, 2019



School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Balance Sheet
os gt 31 March 2012

[Amount in % lakhs)

Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment =1 26.97 17.028
Intangible assets 6B £8.82 2.37
Intangible assets under development [-1:] 3246 15.94
Financial agsets

Investments 7 - -

Loans 8 23,18 8.38
Incoma tax assets (net} 76.40 51.59
Deferred tax assets (net) ] - -
Othet non-current assets K 10 - 1.01

247.83 96.37
Current assets
Financial assets

Invesiments 11 465.55 840,58

Trade receivables 12 359.44 54.62

Cash and cash equivalents 13 62.91 3.54

Loans 14 - 1.04

Other financial assets 15 - 72
Other current assets 16 1.65 2.26

§89.55 933.76
TOTAL ASSETS 1,137.38 1,030.13
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 17 §2.54 22.94
Instruments entirely In equity nature 18 - -
Other equity 19 {459.32) {402.60]
[376.38] 1319.66}
Liahilities
Hon-current liahilities
Financial liahtiities . .

Borrowings 20 1,350.04 1,233.86
Provisions 21 12.63 8.07
Other non-current liabillitles 21 - 0.10

1,362.67 1,242.02
Current liabilities
Fimancial liabilities

Trade payables

- Des Lo migro and small enterprises

- Dues other than micro and small enterprises 23 30.78 2334

Other financial liabilities 24 .62 56.09
Other current liabilities 25 2291 10.63
Prowisions 26 26.78 17.71

151.09 107,77
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,132.38 1,030.13
significant accounting policies 1-4

Notes referred to above form anintegral part of 543
the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Manian & Rao . . o For School Guru Eduserve Bt Ld
e . ¢
L

Paresh Daga Shantany Rogj Ravi Vishwanath
Partner S Diractar Drector
Membearship No. 21146 DIN : 00200275 DI ;07332234
Place: Pengalury Place: Bengaluru Piace: Bengaluru

Date: 24th May, 2013 Date: 24th May, 2015 Date: 24th May, 2018




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended on 31 March 2019

{Amount in X lakhs}

Year Ended For the Year ended
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue from operations 27 861.95 308.61
Other income 28 49.57 49,62
Total income’ 911,52 358,23
Expenses .
Employee benefits expense 29 532.97 508.12
Finance costs 30 116.33 138.61
Depreciation and amortization expense 6 31.60 11.58
Other expenses 31 299.46 318.55
Total expensés 980.36 976.86
Profit before exceptional Items and tax (68.84) {618.63)
Exceptional items - -
Profit hefore tax {68.84) {618.63)
Tax expense 41
Current tax - -
Deferred tax (benefit}/charge -
Total tax expense -
Profit for the year {68.84) {618.63)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans ] 233 8.22
Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
Total other comprehensive income 2.33 8.22
Total comprehensive income for the year {66.51) {610.41)
Earnings per equity share for continuing operations (face value per share € 10 each)
Basic 39 {8.30) (78.72)
Diluted 39 {8.30} {78.72}
Significant accounting policies 1-4
Notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone
. 5-43
financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Manian & Rao For School Guru Eduserve pvt Ltd
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001983
aresh Daga Shantanu Rooj Ravi Vishwanath
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 211468 DIN : 00200275 DiN : 07332234
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: 24th May, 2019

Date; 24th May, 2019



Schoot Guru Eduserve Privale Limlted
Cash flow statement for the period andad 31 March 2019
farmount in ¥ lakhs]

Partfcutars Year Ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
A, Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax lor the perlod 16884 {618.63)
Adjustmants ta reconcle profit For the year to net cash generated
fram onerating activithes:
Depreclation and amortisatlon expense 3160 11.58
Interest expenses - 13.7%
Interest on unwinding of financlal instrument 11618 14561
Employee Comp K o.78 30,38
Proflt on Sales of Ficed Assats - 10,24}
Galn on Sales of Invastments [61.29) }2.46]
Falr value changes of mutual ftnds 14.52 118.67)
Liability written back {010} 126,93}
Provision for bad and doubtful debt 3.51 998
Provision for other receivables 172
Falr value changes of invesiment . - 4.30
Sundry balance w/ back 0,36 65,31
Operating profit before working cepital changes 53.85 [407.04)
Changes n aperating assets ond liabilities
[Increase} f decrease in trade recelyables {315.09] 71.84
fIncrease} / decrease in [nventotles . .
{Increase} f decrease in Non current financlal lgans [14.81) [0.50)
[Increase} / decrease ih Nonh ciirent other clrren| asset 101 {1.01)
[Increase} f dacraase In current Nnancial loans 104 10.21)
[Increase} f dacrease in cument financial other assats 30,00 131,72}
[Increase} f decrease in ather current assets 062 {1.01)
Increase § {decrease) in non current financial horrowing {0004 {1,561.7%
In¢rease f (decrease} in provisions [net of OCI) 15.96 10.87

Increase f (dacraase} in other non current financial |lakillties - -

Increase f {decrease} In trade payables ras 1047

Increase f {decrease) |n other financlal llabilltes 14.53 {57.80}
Increase { (decrease} In other current llabllites 1223 0.66

Cash generated from pperating activities {193.17} {1,9671.33)
Incame Lax paid [24.80) 131.56]
Met cosh {used in) operating activities [F:] {217.98} {1,990.89)
Cash flows from investing acthvities

Purchase ol property, plant and equipmant [20.18) [a.31)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assats 152

{Incraase) § D in i Ibles under devefor {1651} [i5.94)
increase in intangible assets 1107.77) {0.50
Sale of mutual Tunds “40.51 -

Gain on sala of mutual funds 61.29 246

Purchase of mutual funds {580,004 [821.91)
Het cash {used In} investing activities e} 271.35 |433.68)
Cash Hows from financing activities

Proceeds Irom lssue of equity share capital - 48,22

instruments entirely in aquity nature - [131.25)
Share prambum on Conversion of CCO & CCCPS to Equity - 3,114.31

Equity component on financia! instruments - [11%.49)
Praceads from /[ [tepayment of} short-term barrowings {net) - [63.77)
Inlerest expente - [13.75)
Net cash generated from financing activities €} - 2,834.27

Ket increase f (decrense) in cash end cash equivalents (A + B + C) 5937 (3.30
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 3.59 6.84

Cash and cash equivalents at tha end of the pariod 62,91 3.54

Components of cesh and cash oquivabonts

Cash on hand 013 0.14

Chegues on hand 009

Balances with banks

- On current accoynt 62.78 331

Total cash and cash equivalents §2.91 3.54

Summacy of sighiflcant accounting pelicies - Refer nole 1 -4

The gocompanying notes are & integeal part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Manian & Rao

Chartered Accountants o For Schoof Guru Eduserve
Firm Rogistratiop/Number; 0019835

aresh Daga

Partner Shantanu Rogj Ravi Wishwanath

Membership No, 211468 Director Dlracter
DIi @ 00200275 DIN : 07332234

Place; Bengalury Place: Bengalury Placs: Bengaluru

Date: 24th May, 2019 Data: 24th May, 2019 [Date: 24th May, 2019
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School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the yeor ended on 31 March 2019

{Amount in % lakhs)

7

10

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Mon current investments
Investments {Unguoted)
Investments in equity instruments of other entities measured at fair value
through Profit and Loss
Systernatix Commaodities Services Pyt Ltd* 4,27
Less: Provision for Ditninution in 1he Value of
Investimonls (4.27)
Loans
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits 23.18 8.28
23,18 8.38
Note:

No amount is due from any of the directors or officers of the Company, severally or jointly with any other person; or from firms
where such director is a partner or from private companies where such director is a member.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred liabilities

-Fair valuation of current investment 1.08 4.86
-Fair valuation of financial instruments a0.20
Deafarred assets

6.09
- Difference WDV as per books and Tax laws on
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset 1.08
-Provision for employee henefits 6.70
-Tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation ’ 22.26
Net deferred tax asset - -

The Company have unabsorbed depreciation and losses under tax laws and it is not probable that taxable profits will be available in
the near future. Hence, deferred tax assets on temporary differences have been recognized only to the extent of net deferred tax
liabilities.

Other non-current assets
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Capltal advances - 1.1

. 1.01
No amount is due from any of the directors or officers of the Company, severally or jointly with any other person; or from firms
where such director is a partner or from privale companies where such director is a member,




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)

for the year ended on 31 March 2012

{Amount in X lakhs)

1t Current investments
Investments in Mutual funds measured at fair value through
Profit and Loss {quoted)
Birla Sun Life Saving Fund
35,308, 79 units {2018: 88,390 units ]

ICIC! Prudential Flexible Income Plan - Reg - Growth
1,50,430.55 units (2018; 1,41,457.64 units )

Aggregate of guoted investments

12 Trade receivables
{Unsecured)
Trade receivables with related parties (refer note 37}

Trade receivables [Unsecured) :
- Considered good
- Considered doubtful

Less: Aliowance for had and doubtful trade receivables

Break-up of security details

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
465.55 369.08
471.50

465.55 840.58
465,55 840.58
4.11 0.88
355.34 53.74
13.61 9,98
373.08 6.0
13.61 9.98
359.44 54.62

Trade receivables considered good-Secured

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Trade receivables considered good-Unsecured 355.44 54.62
Trade receivables which have significanl increase in credii risk

Trade Receivables- ciedit impaired 13.61 9.98
Total 373.05 64,60
Allowance for doubtiul debls 13.61 9.98
Total grade receivable 359.49 54.62

Notes:

a) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other offlcers of the company either severally or jointly wit
any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which

any director is a partner, a director or 3 member,
b} Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

¢} The Company's exposue to credit risk, currency risk and loss allowance on trade receivables are disclosed in Note

323

d} Trade recelvables are subject to balance confirmations.




Schoo! Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the year ended on 31 Morch 2019

{Amaunt in % lakhs}

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
13 Cash and bank balantes
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand : 0.13 0.14
Chegues in hand 0.09
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 62.78 3.31
62.91 3.54
14 loans
{Unsecured, considered good unfess otherwise stated)
Loans and advances
- Loan to employees - 1.04
. 1.04

Note:
No amount is due from any of the directors or officers of the Company, severally or jointly with any other person;
or from firms where such director Is a partner or from private companies where such director is a member.

15 Other current financial assets
{Unsecured, considered good unless atherwise stated)

Advance for Investment - 30.00
{ICIC] Prudential Fexible Income Plan -Reg-Growth)

Stamyp duty receivable 1.72 1.72
Less: Provision far Stamp Duty Receivable 1.72

~ 3172
Notes

(i) Other finanacial assets are measured at amortised cost
(i} Mo amount is due from any of the directors or officers of the Company, severally or jointly with any other
person; or from firms where such director is a partner or from private companies where such director is a member,

16 Other current assets
{Unsecured, considered good unfess otherwise siated)

Advance to suppliers .25 -
Prepaid expenses 0.88 0.94
Prepaid lease rentals - 0.75
Imprest advance .52 057
165 2.26

No amount is due from any of the directors or officers of the Company, severaily or jolntly with any other person;
or from fArms where such director is a partner or from private companies where such director is a member.




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the year ended on 31 March 2019

[Amount in X lakhs}

17  Share capital
Authorised:

£9,59,700 {89,59,700, ] equity shares of % 10 each fully paid up
1,92,703({ 1,92,703 } Prference shares of ¥ 1000 each fully paid up
2,70,000 {2,70,000 } Prference shares of X 10 each fully paid up

Issued subscribed and fully paid up:
8,29,423 (8,29,423) equity shares of X 10 sach fully paid up

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
895.97 885.97
1,927.03 1,927.03

27.00 27.00

2,850.00 2,850.00

82.94 82.94

82.94 82.94

17.1 inthe event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive a share in the remaining assets
of the Campany, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution witl be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders,

17.2 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares cutstanding at the beginning and at the end ¢f the year:

Paritculars [ As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Number of shard (% in Number of shares {® in fakhs)
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 520423 82.94 3,47,231 3472
Add: Shares issued on conversion of CCPS - - 4,12,771 41.28
Add: Shares issued on conversion of CCD - 69,421 6.94
Dutstanding at the end of the year 8,129,423 82.94 8,29,423 82.94

17.3  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of % 10. Each shareholder of equity shares is entitled to one

vote per share,

17.4 Number of equity shares held by rach shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company are as follows:

Name of the shareholders Number of % of
shares as at shares Number of shares as at o of shares held
31 March 31 March 2018
»018 hetd
TeamLease Services Limited 1,84,068| 22.19% 1,384,063 22.19%
Broadilyne Infoservices Pyt Ltd 1,40,967| 17.00% 1,40,967 17.00%
Consclidated Technical Services India LLP 95,928 11.57% 95,928 11.57%
Shantanu Rogj . 92,278] 11.13% 92,278 11.13%
N Squared Management LLC 65,187 7.86% 65,187 7.86%
17.%  Number of Preference shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company are as follows:
Name of the shareholders Number of
% of
shares asat Number of shares as at % of shares held
31 March 5:"‘:;‘ 31 March 2018 °
2019 ©
TeamLease Services Litnited
{Series D Convertible Cumulatlve Preference Shares
[CCPS)* ) 2,69,681| 100.00% 269,681 100.00%

*Series D Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares {CCPS) is issued to Teamicase Services Limited amounting to Rs, 26,95 lacs
with premium of Rs. 1323.03 lacs. Series D CCPS with 0.1% dividend rate is treated as compund financial instrument and hence,
the equity portion is presented as " Other Equity" and liability component is presented under borrowing.

17.51 Aggregate number of equity shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares for Lhe period of five years immediately

preceding the Balance Sheet date Nil {Previous year Nil).




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the year ended on 31 March 2019

{Amount in % lakhs) )
i 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
18 . Instruments entirely in equity nature
Compulsorilly convertible debentures
Opening balance - 131.25
Add ; Issue of debentures - .
Less: Conversion of debentures - {131.25}
E 19  Other eguity
1 Securitles premium
Opening balances 3,280.22 165.92
Add : Equity Shares issued on premium - 3,114.31
Closing balance 3,280.22 3,280.22
2 Equity companent of financial instruments
Dpening balance 160.65 280.14
Add : On account of Issuance of CCD - -
Add : On account of {ssuance of CCPS D Series - 160.65
Less : On issue of equity shares - 280.14
Closing halance ' 160.65 160.65
3 Share-based payment reserve
Opening balances 36.70 6,32
Add : Employee stock option expense 5.78 30.38
Less : Effect of option lapsed after vesting date 5.20
Less : On tssue of equity shares - -
Closing balance 41.28 36.70
3 Surplus / {Deficit)
Opening balances {3,880.18]) 13,269.77)
Add ; Profit / {Loss } for the year (68.84) (618.63}
. Add : Transfer from Other comprehenslve income 2.33 8,22
Add: Transfer from share-based payment reserye 5.20
Closing balance {3,941.48) {3,880.18}

{459.32) {302.60)




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the year ended on 31 March 2019

{Amount in % lakhs}

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
20 Borrowings
Unsecured borrowings
Compulsorily convertible preference shares
- CCPS D Series 2,69,681 preference shares { dividend rate @ 0.1%) 1,350.04 1,233.86
1,350.04 1,233.86

Each of the CCPS is convertible into equity shares after 31.03.2018 or at any time at the option of the holder of the
CCPS,not later than 20 years.

Net debt reconcitiation

Particulars Borrowings
Balance as at 1 April 2018 1,233.86 2,734.8C
Cash flow changes

Loan taken during the year - 247.35
Repayment of loans - (311.12)
Liability component of CCPS D series (including interest) - 1,233.86
Interest expenses 116.18 138.36
Interest paid - {13.75)
Interest pertaining to CCPS D - {44.50)
Conversion of liability component of CCPS { A, B & C Series} and CCD into (2,751.14)
equity shares -

Balance as at 31 March 2019 1,350.04 . 1,233.86
Note:

21 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
- Compensated Absences 12.63 8.07

12.63 8.07

22 Other Non Current Liabilites

Performance Security Deposit - 0.10

0.10




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (continued)
for the year ended on 31 Morch 2019

{Amount in % lakhs}

CURRENT LIABILITIES

23

249

Trade payahles

Trade payables (Micro and Smalt Enterprises)
Trade payables (Other than Micro and Small Enterprises)

Notes:
(i) Trade payables to related parties are disclosed in note 37.

Other current financial liabilities

Creditar for expenses
Payble to Freefancer
Payahle to professors
Fayahle to partners
Payable to employees
Employee reimbursemant

{ij Balances payables to related parties are disclosed in note 37,

25 Other current liabilities

26

Contract liabilities {Refer note 43)
Statutor dues payable

Provistans

Provision for employee benefits
- Compensated absences
- Gratuity (Refer note 35(2])

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
30.78 23.34
30.78 23.34
17.17 852

.74 256
0.60 0.32
0.15 -
45,94 39.52
5.01 5.17
70.61 56.00
.09 168
22.82 8.95
22.91 10.63
381 2,45
2297 15.27
26.78 17.71




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)

for the year ended on 31 Morch 2019
{Amount in & lakhs)
2‘;' Revenug from operations
Education Support Services

Other gperating revenues

Reconcillation of revenue recognised with contract price:

Contract Price

Adjustmants for:

Contract liabilities

Refund Lizhilities

Ingentives and performance bonus
Revenus from continuing operations

Year tnded .
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
849.90 2958.40

12.06 10.20

861.95 308.61

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

861.95

861.95

308.61

308.61

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers from 1 April 2018. Ind AS 115 establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaced Ind AS 18 -
Revenue, Ind AS 11 - Construction Contracts and related interpretations. Under Ind A5 115, revenue is recognised when a

customer obitaing control of the goods or serviges.

The Company has adopted ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach, with the effect of applying this standard
recognised at the date of application i.e. from 1st April 20118, Accordingly, the information presented for year ended 31
March 2018 has not been restated — i.e. 1t is presented, as previously reported, under Ind AS 18, Ind AS 11 and related
intarpretations. Additionally, the disclosure requirements in Ind AS 115 have not been applied to comparative

information.”

After evaluation of all the live contracts as on 1st April, 2018 there is no material impact on application of Ind A5 115 on

financial statements.

28 Other income

Interest income

Profit on sale of fixed assets (net]

Fair value changes in mutual funds {including gain on sale)

Sundry balances written back

Qther non operating income {net of expenses directly atiributable
to such income) (including miscellanecus income)

0.20 0.01
- 0.24
46.78 21.13
172 2822
0.28 0.02
49.57 49.62




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)

for the year ended on 31 March 2019

{Amount in ¥ takhs)

29 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and incentives

Contribution to provident fund and Other funds(Refer note 35(1)}
Employee Compensation Expenses (ESOP)

Staff weifare expensas

Leave encashment

Gratuity expensas {Refer note 35(2))

Directors remuneration

30 Finance costs

Interest expense

Interest expense on unwinding of preference shares liability
interest expense on unwinding of debentures

Bank charges

Year Ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
432,46 396.78
22.43 19.42
9.78 30.38
7.47 4,44
7.15 4,98
10.27 10.28
43,39 41.24
532.97 508.12
- 13.75
116.18 88.52
- 36.09
0.15 0.25
116.33 138.61




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)

for the yeor ended on 31 March 2019

{Amount in X lakhs}

31 Other expenses

Travelling expenses
Local conveyance
Advertising - Sales & Marketing
Cost of professional sub-contracting (net}
Office Expenses
Power and fuel
Rent {Refer note 38)
Repairs and maintenance -
- plant & equipment
- others
Insurance
Rates & taxes
Telecome And Internet Expenses
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Provision for other Receivable
Fair value changes of investment in systematrix controls india
Sundry balances written off
Promotion Sales And marketing
Printing & stationery
Auditors remuneration {net of service tax)
- Audit fees
- Company Law Matters
- Fees for other services
- Qut of pocket expenses reimbursed
Legal and professional services
Hosting services - Email / web
Comission Expenses
Miscellaneocus expenses (net)

Year Ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
46,50 31.65
3.81 1.60
20.30 6.10
13.26 34.23
8.27 11.59
4.85 447
48.63 49,49
5.00 7.60
0.40 0.25
0.85 2.70
B.18 11.21
391 9.98

1.72 -
- 4,30
0.36 65.31
14.24 7.09
6.77 B8.20
3.88 5.65
4,51 18,22
13.13 8.64
52.65 14.79
32,24 15.47
299.46 318,55




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the year ended on 31 March 2018

32  Finandal Instruments

2.1

financial Instruments by category

The carrying valus and fair value of financial Instrumm:

ents by categories 23 on 31 March 2019 are as Foilows:

Particulars Amortised cost FYTPL FYTOCI Total carrying Total fair value
value
Ascats
lavestments in mutual funds - 465.55 - 4B85.55 465,55
Trade receivables 359.44 - - 35044 35944
Cash and cash eguivalents 62.91 - - 62.91 62.91
Other balances with banks . - .
Loans 13.18 - - 2318 2318
Other finenclal assets - - - - -
Total Assets 44553 465,55 . 911.08 91108
Liabilities
Borrowings 1,350.04 - - 1,350.04 1,350.04
Trade payables . . .
Other financlal liabilities 7061 - - F0.61 7061
Yotal Liabilities 1,420.65 - - 1,420.65 1,420.65
The carrylng value and fair value of financial Instruments by categories as on 31 March 2018 were as foliows:
|Particulars Amortised cost FVTPL FVYTQCI Total carrying Total Fair value
value
Assets
investments in mutual funds - 840.58 - 240.58 §40.58
Trade receivables 54.62 - 54.62 54.62
Cash and cash equivalents 3.54 - - 3.54 3.54
Loans 941 - - 941 941
(ther financial asseis 3172 - - 31,72 3172
Total Assets 99.29 $40.58 - 939.87 939.87
Liabifities
Borrowings 1,233.86 - 1,233.86 1,233.86
Trade payables 2234 - - 2334 3.3
Ceher financial liablllties 56.09 - - 56.0% 56.09
Total Liabilities 1,313.28 - - 1,313.28 1,313.28




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (continued)
for the year ended on 31 March 2019

321

322

Financlal Instruments by category frontinued)

Fair value higrarchy

Fi ial assats and liabilities include cash and cash equivalents, othar balances with banks, rade recelvables, loans, other financlal assets, trade payables and

other financial liabilities whose falr values approximate their carrying amounts largely due to tha short term nature of such assets and liabitities.

Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identlcal assets or liablfitles.

Lavel 2 — lnpits other than gquoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or Yabllity, either directly {le. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.

derlved from prices).
Lavel 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilitias that are not based on ohservable market data {(unchbservable inputsh.

The following table pi ts fair value hl hy of assets and |labilities measured ot fair value as oh March 31, 2013
Particulass Asat Fair vajue ag at
31 tarch 2039 Loval 1 level 2 Levei 3
Investments in mutual funds 465.55 4£5.55
Borrowlngs 1,350.04 1,350.04
The following table presents falr value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value as en March 31, 2018
Particulars As at Fair value t a5 at
31 March 2018 Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3
Investments in mutust funds 340,58 840,58
Borrowings 1,233.86 1,233.86

Fair valug hierarchy fcontinued)
valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs:

Level 2:

{i} Borrowings are valued using the discounted cash llow method, the net cash llows expected to be generated are discounted using the cost of borrowing that

are directly or indirectly observable in the market,




school Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the year ended on 31 March 2019

33.3 Financial risk management

The board of directors has overall responsibllity far the establishment and oversight of the Company risk management framawork. Tha board of dirsctors |5
responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s tisk management policlas.
The Company has sxposure to the following risks arising from flnancial insteuments :

a Credit risk
Credlt risk is the risk of financial losses 1o the Company if a customer or counterparty to Hrangial instruments fails to discharge its contractual ohligations
and arises primardly from the Company’s receivables from customers. To this, the Company pearlodically the key sccounts receivable

balances. As per Ind-AS 103 : Financial Instruments, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the Impairment loss or gain,
The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and other financial assets reprasents the maximum credit exposure.

1. Trade receivables
The t has blished accounts receivable policy uhder which customer accaunts are regutarly monitored. The Company has 2
dedicated sales team at ach geography which is rasponsible for collecting dues from the c within stipulated period. The gement
reviews status of critlcal accounts on a regutar basis.

Trade receivables that were not impaired

Particulars - Carrying amount

31 March 2013 11, March 2018
Helther past due nor impalred
Past due 1- 60 days 17801 6.74
Past due 61 - 180 days 163.1% A7 88
Past due 181 - 270 days 13.235
More than 270 days - -

jii. Cashand bank balances

The Company heid cash and bank balances of ® 62,91 |akhs and T 3.54 lakhs as on 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2018 respectively.




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Wotes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued}
Jor the year ended or 31 March 2019

b,  Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk |s the risk that the Company will ancounter difficulty In meeting the obligations assoclated with its financial labilities that are settled by
deliwering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach 1o marsging liquidity is 10 ensure, as far a5 possibia, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabititles whan thay are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurfing unacceptable losses or risking damage to

The Company has 2 view of maintaining liquidity and to take reimimum possibla risk while paking investments. In order o maintain lquidity, the
Company Inyests 1ts excess funds in short term liquid assets fike liguid mutual funds. The Company monitors its cash and bank balances peradically in

view ol Tts short term obligatlons assoclated with its financial liabilities.

The liguldity position at sach reporting date is glven helow:

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash and cash equivalents £2.91 3.54
Inwestrnents in Mutial funds {quaotad] 456555 240.58
Total 525.46 844,12

The following are the remalning contractual maturities of financial liabllities as on 31 March 2013,

Particulars Less than Above Total ‘1
1 year 1 year
30,78 - 30.78
|Other fina ncial liabilities 76.61 - 70.61
The lollowlng are the Ining contractual maturities of fi ial Tiabilltes as on 31 March 2018,
{particulars Less than Above Total
1 year 1 year
Borrowings® - - -
Trade payables 234 - 23.34
Other flnancis! abllites 56.09 - 56.00

#igte: Compulsotily Convertible Prefrence Share and Compulsority convertible Dehenture shown under schedules of Boerowlngs are not shawn in above
ageing as they ara not repayable and convertible to ayuity shares on maturity.




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {eontinued)
for the year ended on 31 Murch 2019

32,3 Financial vlsk management frontinued)

. Market risk
Market Fisk 15 & risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The ohjective of
market risk management s to manage and cohtral market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the raturn.

i, Interest rate risk
Intarast rate risk is the rlsk that the fair value or future cash flows of 3 Hmaneial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company's exposure to the rlsk of changes in matket interest rates relates primarily to the Company's debt obligations with floating
interast rates and bank deposits. The interast rate profile of the Company's Intarest-bearlng financlal Instruments is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2039 31 March 2018

Fixed rate instruments

Financial liabllities 1,350.04 122386
iable rate |

[Finandial liablithes - -

33 Capltal management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued eguity capital and alf other equity reservas athrlbutable to the equity holders of the

Company. The primary objsctive of the Company's capital manag is o ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratlos in order to support
its business and maximisa sharehoider value.

Tha Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to It iny light of changes in aconomic conditiens and the requirements of the financial covenants. Ta
rmalktain or adjust tha capltal structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capltal to sharehglders or issue new shares.,

. No changas were made in the cbjectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March, 2018




schoo! Guru Eduserve Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (continued}
for the year ended on 31 March 2019

34 Dischosure as per the requirement of section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006:

Company Is in process of collecting information from its vendors for their status under “Tha Small, Medium and Micre Enterprises Development Act 2006", however in
absence of any infarmation no disclosures have been made in this regards.

35 Details of employee benefits as required by ind-AS5 19 - “employee benefits are as under":

3 Defined contribution plan - Provident fund
The group has recognized following amounts in the profit & loss account for the year:

|Particular FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Contribution to employee provident fund 2243 19.42
Yotal 22.43 12.42

2 Defined benefit plan
i} The defined benefit plan comprises gratuity, which 1s funded.
ii) Actuarial gains and losses in respect of defined benefit plans are recognized in the Other Comprehensive income (CCI).

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Gratulty i5 a benefit to an employee in India based on 15
days last drawn salary for each completed year of service with & vesting pariod of five years.

These defined beneflt plans expose the Company 1o actuarial risks, such as longevity risk and interest rate risk.

35 Details of employee Henefits as required by Ind-A5 19 - “Employee henefits are as under” {continued)

Changes in present value of the defined henefit ohligation FY 2018-19 Fy 2017-18
present value of delined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 25.90 2487
Current service cost 8.88 9.94
interest cost 194 1.61
] Past service cost - 0.06
: actuarial Joss / {Gain) recognised in other comprehensive Income
3} changes in demographic assumptions {0.00) .
b) changes n financial assumptions 0.39 0.92}
¢) experience adjustments (3.24) {7.25)
Benefits paid - 12.52)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of tha year 34.37 25.90
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets F¥ 2018-19 £Y 2017-18
fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the peripd .63 1236
Interestincome ) 0.81 0.76
Contributions 0.23 0.17
tAortality Charges and Taxes 0.26) (0,200
Benefit Paid - [2.52)
Actuarial 1oss / {Gain) recognised in other comprehensive income
a} Experience [Galn) f Loss on plan assets {0.09) .22
b} Financial (Gain} / Loss on plan assets 0.08 10.16)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 11.40 10.63
Reconciliation of Net Assets / [Uiability) recognised FY 2018-39 FY 2017-18
Net aseet/(liabllity) recognised at begning of the period (15.27} [12.61)
Company contribution 0.23 0y
Lenefit directly Paid by company - .
Amount recognised outside Profit & Loss for the Year 2.33 8.22
Expenses recognised at the end of the period {10.02) {10185
Maortality Charges and Taxes 10.26} {0.20)
Impact of Transer {In}/out . .
Net aseet/(tability) recognised at end of the period {22.97) {15.27)
Analysis of defined benefit abligati FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
: Present Value of Obligation at end of the period 34.37 25.90
; Fair Value of the Plan assets at the end of the period 11.40 10.63
Surplus / {Deflcit) (2287} (2527}
Current liability (22.97) {15.27)
; Mon - Current liakility _ - -
. Amount not Recognised due to asset ceiling . .
Net asset/{iiability) recognised in balance sheet - (22.97) {15.27}
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued}
for the yeor ended on 31 March 2019

Comp ts of employer exp i ur t ized in the st t of Profit and Luss FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Current service cost 8.88 9.94
Past service cost - 0.06
Interest cost net 1.14 0.85
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 10.02 10.85
Comp ts of employ In Ji ement recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OC1) £y 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Actuarial loss / (gain) (2.33) 18.22}
Het {income)fexpense recognized in the OC! {2.33) {8.22)
Net tnterest{income}/exy : FY 2018-19 FY 201718 |
Interest [Income)/Expenses - abligation 1.94 161
Interest {income}/Expenses - Plan Assets {o.81) {0.76]
et Interest {Income}fExpenses for the year 1.14 0.35
Masurements For 'the Year [Acturial {Gain}fLoss) FY 2018-19 £y 2017-18
!ﬁrience {Gain}/Loss on plan llabilites 3.24} [7.25)
Demographic (Gain)/Loss on plan liabilites - -
Financial [Gain}/Loss on plan liabilites 0.89 0o
Experience {Galn}/Loss on plan assels 009 {0.22)
Financial [Gain)/Loss on plan assels {0.08) 0.1%
Total Remeasurements Cost/lcradit] for the year recognised in OC1 [2.33} [8.22)
hctuarial A ptions: FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
piscount rate 7.00% 7.50%
Salary Escalation 11.00% 11.00%
Attrition Rate FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
- Upto 30 years and below 20.00% 20.00%
- 3() years and above 20.00% Z0.00%J

35 Details of amployee benefits as required by Ind-AS 19 - “Employee benefits are as under” {eantinued)
a. The discount rate is based on prevailing yields of Indian Government Securities as at the Balance Sh

ect date for the estlmated term of the obligation.

b. Salary Escalation Rate; The estimates of future salary increases takes into account the inflation, seniority, prometion and other relevant factors.

[ Assumpﬁons regarding future moriality rates are the rates as given under Indian Assured Lives Mortality {2005-08) Ultimate.

Major Categories of Plan Assets {As % of total Plan Assets) FY 2018-19 Fy 2017-18

Funds rmanaged by insurer 100% 100%
Others 0.00% 0.00%
Total 100% 100%

Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date 10 one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding

defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

other assumptions constant, would have affected the

fY 2018-19 FY 2017-13
Projected benefit obfigation on currgnt assumptions Defined benefit chiigation Definzd benefit obligation
fncrease Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1 % movement) 32.63 36.28 24,69 27.23
future salary growth {1 % movernent) 35.81 33,01 2694 24.53
attrition rate {1 % movement) 34.84 33.94 2571 2610
Maturi ofilg of defined ben lan
projected benefits payable in future yeass from the date of reporting FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
With 1 year 3.46 228
1-2 year 4.45 237
2-3 year 5.85 3.84
3-4 year 6.37 511
4-5 year 9.59 5.75
5-10 years 49.02 38.70
36 Datails of employee henefits as required by nd-AS5 12 - "employee benefits are as undar" {continued)
Weighted g Jons used to determine net pericdic benefit cost £Y 2018-15 FY 2017-18
Number of active members 116 38
per month salary cost for active members (% akhs) 2233 1691
Weighted average duration of the projected benefit obfigation {years) 7.97 8.09
Average expected future service [years) 34.18 3374
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements fcontinued)
for the year ended on 31 Merch 2019

E d Contri n fi e next ye;

The Company has contributed Rs 0.17 lakhs te its gratuity fund in 2018. The Company expatts W contribute Rs 9 Yakhs towards gratuity fund in 2019,

Expected exg to be recognized in Profit & Loss Account for Next Year £Y 2018-19 FY 201718
Service Cost ©11.28 8.88
Net Interast Cost 1.60 0.81
Expected Expensas for next years 12.89 9.69

36 Segment information

The Company's operating business predominantly refates to providing Technology enabled learning solutions to distance educalion courses of universities and hence
the Company has considered “Distance learning solutions” as the single reportable segment.

37 Related party disclosures

A, Relationship between the entities

!ﬁlaﬁonship |name of related party

Enterprise over which key Manageral Teamlease Services Ltd {w.e f 2nd November, 2017}
Personnel are able to exercise significant Broadlyne Infoservices Fvt. L.

[influence.

8. vstof Key Management Personniel :

Key Management Personnel [KMP} Shantanu Rooj Executive Director

Ravi Wishwanath Non- exccutive Dirgctor
Sandeep Mehta Non- executlve Director
Ashok Kurnar Madururmalll {(Upto Mon- executive Director
21/01/2m9)
Kunal Kumthekar Non- executive Direcior
fituparna Chakeaborty (From Non- executive Director
21/01/2019) J

[ tist of ather related parties with whom there are transactions

[relative of KMP TKavita Rooj - Spouse of Director

; 0. - Transactions with related parties

No. Hame of related party Fy 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Amount of Balance as on Amgunt of Balance as on
transactions during| 31 March 2019 | transactions during 31 March 2018
the year Debit/f{Credit) the year Dehit/{Credit}
(% takhs] (% 1akhs) {2 Lakhs) (¥ fakhs}
'Transactions with Parties Having Substantial Interest
1 Yeamlease Services Lt
AMotment of CCPS - - 1,350.00 1,350.00
Revenug 4,11 4.11 0.88
imk i - - 1.42 0.27
2 Broadllyne Infoservices Pt Ltd
Rent 36.00 - 42.75 -
Reimbursement of expenses {net) 2.49 - 2.79 -
professional fees 2.27 - 155 -
) Transactions with Key 2 vt Personnel
; 1 Ravi Rangan -
: Shart term employee beneflts - - 6.86 -
i Post employment benefit plans _ -
Reimbursement of expenses {net) - . 1.58 -
! 2 Shantanu Rooj
: Short term empioyee benefits 43.39 3.16 38.22 2.94
Canversion of CCPS/CCD to Equity Shares - 10.99
; Loan taken by company - - 29.00 -
Repayment of loan taken - 152.2%
Interest received - . 4.27 -
|zeimbursemant of expenses {net} 51.95 0.10 34.65 0.18
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Notes forming part of the standalone fina neial statements [continued)
for the yeor ended on 31 March 2019 :

ag

L]

a0

Anil Bhatt
3 Shart term employee benefits - 3.03 -
Dther long term employee Benefits - 0.09 -
Conversion of CCPS/CCD to Equity Shares - 1.78] -
Loan given - - -
fepayment of loan granted - 0.73 -
Reimbursement of expenses [net} - 0.22 -
4 Sandeep Mehta
Loan taken by company - 15.00 -
Repayment of loan taken - 15.00 -
Interest recelved - 0.35 -
5 Naresh Nagpal
Converslon of CCPS/CCD to Equity Shares - 13599 -
Loan glven . 22,501 -
Repayment of loan granted - 22.50 -
[interest received - 0.63 -
Reimbursement of expenses net} ’7 - 0.23[ -
Transactions with relative of Key Management personnel
1 Kavita Rooj
Short term employee benefits 12.00 0.89 9.56 0.79
Post employment benefit plans - - -
(.60 0.05 0.30 0.05

Reimbursement of expenses [net}

Note - Remuneration excludes provision for employee benefits as separate actuarial
is not available.

Lease transactions
Operating leases
Obligations tawards non-cancel able operating Leases:

The Company has taken facilities and office premises on lease. The future lease payments for these lacilities are as under:

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
® lakhs ® lakhs
Minimum lease payments
- Not later than one year 12.48 8.69
. later than one year and Not later than five years - -
- Later than five years - -
Total mini jease pay 12.48 §.69

fentai expenses of & 49.49 lakhs (Previous year ® 4502 lakhs) in respect of cbligation under operating

and Loss.
ost of the operating lease arrang

b5 are rer

ble on a periodic basis. Some of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses.

valuation for the directors, key management personnel and their relatives

leases have been recognized in the Statement of Profit

Basic and dituted earnings per shase

Particulars £Y 2G18-1% FYf 2017-18
Nominal value per aquity share % 10 10
Profit for the year Zlakhs {58840 {618.63)
Weighted average number of equity shares Nao. of shares £,29423 7,585,828
Earnings per share - Basic (8.30) {78.72)
Earnings per share - Diluted* {8.30) 78,72

* The effect of potential equity sharesi.e. ESOP and CCPS issued by teamlease has anti-dilutive effect as there islos

There are no contingent liabilities and capital commitment required to be disclosed as at

31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

<. Thus, the diluted EPS is same as basic EPS.




School Guru Eduserve Private Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)

for the yeor ended on 31 March 2012
A1 Stock option plans

1 Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2015 (E505 - 2016)

The Company has instituted Employee Stock Option Scheme-2016 {ESOS) duly approved by the shareholders in the extra-ordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 25 August, 2016. As per the scheme, the board evaluates the performance and other criteria of employees and approves the grant of options.
These options vest with employeas over a specified periad subject to fulfilmant of certain conditions.

Under the said plan, following eptions have been granted:
- 29,560 options as on 02 September 2016 to the employees of the company. Qut of which 4,616 were not accepted by employees.
- 4,105 optlons as on (4 September 2016 to the employees of the company.
- 860 options as on 01 December 2016 to the employees of the company.

- 1,172 options as on 04 September 2017 to the employees of the company.

Weighted average sharg price {INR)#

FY 2018-19 FY 2017-13

Weightad average Mumtser of options | Weighted average | Mumber of options

Particulars exercise prica per share exercise price par

per option share per option

INR INR

Dpening Balance 282 18,789 887.25 25723
Granted during the year - - 282 1,172
Exercised during the year - - - -
forfeited during the year 282 1,878 282 8106
Closing Balance 282 16,911 282 18,789
Options Exercisable at the end of the period 282 11,166 282 5.483|
i

* The exercise price of the options granted during the year 2016-17 were modified from INR 887.25 to INR 282.00 on 4 May 2017

# Weighted average exercise price of shares is required to be disclosed, where share options are exercised during the period. As no options are exercised in the

reporting period, information is not disclosed.

Ne Options have been granted in the financial year 2018-15,

Share options

ling at the end of the pericd have the following exs

Grant date Expiry date Exercise price No. of options
{iNR)
02-%ep-16 02-5ep-20 282 3,530
02-Sep-16 02-5ep-21 282 4,121
02-5ep-16 02-Sep-22 282 4,123
a-5ep-16 04-5ep-20 282 1,132
04-5ep-16 04-58p-21 282 1,237
04-5ep-16 04-5ep-22 82 136
01-Dec-17 01-Dec-20 82 258
01-Dec-17 03-Dec-21 282 302
01-Dec-17 01-Dee-22 282 300]
04-5ep-17 04-5ep-21 283: 586
04-5ep-17 04-Sep-22 282 586
Total 16,911
Weighted average remaining contractual life of the options outstanding al 2.24 years
the end of the period

Stock option plans [continued)

the end of the period

Grant date Expiry date Exercise price No. of options
{MNR)
02-5ep-16 02-5ep-20) 282 4,093
02-5ep-16 02-5ep-21 282 4,779
02-5ep-16 02-Sep-22 282 4,780
04-5ep-15 04-Sep-20 282 1,132
04-5ep-16 04-Sep-21 282 1,237
04-Sep-16 (M-Sen-22 282 736
01-Dec-17 01-Dec-20 282 258
01-Pec-17 01-Doc-21 282 302
01-Dec-17 01-Dac-22 282 300
04-Sap-17 Da-Sep-21 282 586
04-Sep-17 04-5ep-22 232 586l
Total 18,789
Welghted average remaining contractual kfe of the aptians outstanding at 3.43 years

Eair vatue of the options granted:

The falr value of the options granted is mentionad below as per vesting periad. The fair value of the options is determined using Black-Scholes-Merton model
which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option {time to maturity|, the share price as at the grant date and expected price volatility
{standard deviation}, the expected dividend yield and risk-free interest rat

for the term of the option.

piry date and exercise prices as on 31 March 2019:

Share options outstanding at the end of the pericd have the following expiry date and exercise prices as on 31 March 2018:
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the yeor ended on 31 March 2019

1. Fair value and ptions for the equity-settled grant made on 02 September 2016, 04 Septernber 2016 and 01 December 2015,
particulars 1-ye.ar 2-year 3'\!3:3'
vasting vesting vesting
Stock Price per share {Rs.) 450 450 450
Standard Deviation (Volatility) 44,92% 43.16% 41.97%
Risk-free Rate 6.89% 6.34%) 7.01%)|
Exarcise Price (Rs.) B887.25 887.25 887.25
Time to Maturity (in years) 1.50 years 3.50 years 4,50 years
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%| 0.00%|
Falr value of option {INR) 55.51 20.46 104.29

2. Incremental fair value and assumptions for modification |n equity-settled grant made on 04 May 2017 for grants dated 02 September 2016, 04 September
2016 and 04 December 2016,

Particulars 1-year 2oyear 3-year
vesting vesting vesting

Stock Price per share {Rs.} 450 450 450
Standard Deviation (Volatillty) - 43.37% 43,69% 42.45%)
Risk-free Rate G.68% 6. 79% 6.93%
Time to Maturity {in years) 1.83 2.83 3.83
Dividend yleid 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Exercise Price {Original) RA7.25 837.25 887.25
[Exercise Price (Modified) 282 282 282
|trer tal fair value of option (Rs.] 135.07] 17846 i7i.91
3. Fair valug and assumptions far equity-settled grant made on 04 September 2017.

Particulars 1-year Y3

vesting vesting

Stock Price per share [Rs.) 500.5 500.5
Standard Deviation [Volatility} 42.77%, 43,625
Kisk-free Rate 5.39% 5.43%)|
Exercise Price (Rs.) 282 282
Time 1o Maturity {in years) 2.5 1.9
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%:
Fair value of option (Rs.) 276.12 297.89
Rationa rin¢]hle variables used:

. = Time to maturity of options s the period of time from the grant dats to the date on which option is expected to be exercised. The minimum lile of stock
option is the minimum period before which the optiens cannot be exercised and maximum Hfe is the period after which the options cannot be exercised.

. » The expected price volatility is based on Is average of annualized standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates of return of the comparable listed
companies in education sector over a period,

H loyes-benefit expenses to be recognised ip fin. I

The company has recorded employee stock-based compensation expense to the options provided to the employees:

Financial year Amount INR {In Lakhs)

31st March 2019 9.78
315t March 2018 30.38|

42 Income taxes

The Income tax expense consists of following:

Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 201718
% lakhs % lakhs

Tax expense

Current tax . -

Deferred tax {benefit] / charge . .

Total tax exj . .

The deferred tax relates to origination/reversal of temporary differences.

The reconciliation of estimated Income tax expense at Indian statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in Statement of Profit or Loss is as follows:

Particulars ' FY 2018-19 FY 2017-13

X lakhs % lakhs
Profit before tax {68.84) [618.63)
indian statutory income tax rate 26.00% 26.00%
Expected tax expense {17.90} [160.24)
Tax Effect of adjustments ta reconcile expected Incoma tax expense to reported income lax
expense
Unrecognised deferred tax asset on account of losses and unabsorbed depreciation 17.90 160.84

Total tax expense - -
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
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431

beferred Tax

The gross movement in the deferred income tax account for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, is as follows:

Particulars

FY 2018-19
¥ Jakhs

FY 2017-18
% lakhs

Net deferred income tax asset at the beginning

MAT Credit entitlernent for the year

Credits / [charge]) relating to temporary differences
Temporary differences on other comprehensive income
Net deferred income tax asset at the end

Unrecognised deferred tax assot

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be avallable against which the

company can use the benefits therefrom:

As at 31 March 2019

Particulars 31-Mar-19
Amount Expiry date
Tax losses 762.45 |FY.2020-21 to
F.¥.2025-26
Unatisorbed depreciation 25.94 |Mo expiry
Property, plant and equipment 1.96 |HA
Provigion for Trade Recelvables and Advances 15.33 [nA
Provigion on employee bengfits 22.97 |MA
Total §23.65
As at 31 March 2018
Particulars 31-Mar-18
Amount Expiry date
Tax losses 749,71 |F.¥.2019-20 to
F.Y¥.2025-26
Unabsorbed depreciation 25.20 |Mo expiry
Total F79.91
Contract Liabilties:
Particutars FY 2018-1% FY 2017-18
% lakhs X lakhs
Opening balance 1.68 1.53
Add - Additons during the Year 2,22 3.49
Less -Revenue recognised during the Year 3.81 3.75
[Closing balance 0.09 1,63

As per our report of even date attached
Fer Manian & Rao

Chartered Accountants
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Membership No. 211468

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 24th May, 2019

For School Guru Eduserve vt Ltd

Shantanu Rooj
Diractor
DIN : Q0200275

Place: Bangaluru
Date: 24th May, 2019

s

/

anath
Director
GIM : 07332232

Place: Bengaluru
Cate: 24th May, 2019



School Guru Eduserve Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Indian rupees fakh unless otherwise stated)

1} The Corporate overview

School Guru Eduserve Private Limited (‘the Company’} is a private limited company domiciled in
India and incorperated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, The Company engages
with Universities and helps them in providing distance learning courses through an online
medium.

Teamlease Services Ltd acquired 22,19 % stake in the company by way of investment agreement
dated 2" November, 2017. Consequent to such acguisition the company is an associate
enterprises of Teamlease Services Ltd within the meaning of section 2 (6) of Companies Act,
2013.

2) Significant Accounting Policies:

This note provides a kst of significant policies adopted in the preparation of these IND AS
financial statements. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly
issued Indian Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Indian
Accounting Standard reguires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

A. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards {“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 [the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on.
B. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a histerical cost basis, except for the following
iterns, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date.

¢ Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value.
+ Defined benefit plans — plan assets are measured at fair value.
¢ Equity settled share-based payments — measured at grant date fair value.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services as at the date of respective transactions.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are rounded
to nearest lakhs except when otherwise stated.

C. Standards applied for the first time

The company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the
annual reporting period commencing 1 April,2018:

a) IND AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

b) Amendment to IND AS 12: Income taxes

d) Appendix B, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration to IND AS 21, The

Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchnage Rates
jp&

e) IND AS 112: Disclosure of interests in Other Entities
age | 1
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Indian rupees lakh unless otherwise stated)

pD. Currentversus non-current classification

The company presents assets and liabilities in the batance sheet based on current and non-
current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

¢ Expected tobe realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Expected tobe realised within twelve months after the reparting period, or

» Cash or cash equivatent uniess restricted from peing exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A fiability is classified as current when it is:

» Expected tobe settled in normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, of

¢ There is 0O unconditional right 10 defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liahilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has considered twelve months as its
operating cycle.

£. Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the Financial Statements including notes have been rounded off to the
nearest lakhs in indian Rupee (INR) as per the requirements of Schedule 1l of the Companies
Act, 2013; unless gtherwise indicated.

F. Summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements. These policies have peen consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

a) Property, plant and equipment
» Recognition and measurement

All the items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price and
any directly attriputabte costs of bringing the asset 10 its working condition for the intended
use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Borrowing costs attributable to construction or acquisition of a qualifying asset for the period
up to the date, the asset is ready-for its intended use are included in the cost of the asset 10
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Indian rupees lakh unless otherwisc stated)

which they relate.

+ Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

* Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net
and disclosed within other income or expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

¢ Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, jess its residual value. Depreciation is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item
of property, plant and equipment as prescribed in Schedule I} of the Companies Act 2013.

b) iIntangibie assets

¢ Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the
company, it is probable that the future econemic benefits that are aitributable to the asset will
fiow to the company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets acquired by the company that have finite useful lives are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment josses.

* Derecognition

An item of intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of intangible asset are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible
asset and are recognised net and disclosed within other income or expenses in 1he statement
of profit and loss.

¢+ Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost.
Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use, since
this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset.

Page | 3
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Indian rupees lakh unless otherwise stated)

¢} Leases
e Company as a lessee

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
of the leased item are classified as operating leases. Payments under operating leases are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss generally on straight line basis.

d) Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
or cash generating unit {CGU} may be impaired. if any such indication exists, the company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset, The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or CGW’'s fair value less costs of disposal or its value in use. Where the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are considered.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss and to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

Reversal of impairment loss

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment foss had been recognised.

e} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cash on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

f} Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenue primarily from providing Educational Support Services viz.
Admission, Examination, Content Development and Other Educational Services to various
universities, Schools, Corporates, etc.

Effective 1st April, 2018, the company adopted INDAS 115 (Revenue from Contracts with
customers) using Modified Retrospective approach. In accordance with the modified
retrospective approach, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. Following
is the summary of the new and/or revised significant accounting policy relating to revenue
recognition.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those products or services. To recognize revenues, we apply the following five

step approach:

Page | 4
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{(All amounts are in Indian rupees lakh unless othcrwise stated)

(1) Identify the contract with a customer,

(2) Identify the performance obligations in the contract,

{3} Determine the transaction price,

(4) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and
{5) Recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has
concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary
obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to
credit risks.

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as Contract Assets while invoicing in excess of
revenue are classified as Contract liability,

As the company is into providing one service in nature of education support services, the
company does not disaggregates revenue from contract with customers.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is
recognised.

Revenue from Category A Universities

For services rendered on behalf of the Universities to the students by way of distance
learning courses through an online medium, The revenue is recognized as fotlows:

for all programs, the fee for the first term is recognized once the student confirms his
admission, submits his documents and pays the fee for the same. The login details for the
course is mailed by the system to the student immediately upon payment of the fees and
confirmation of the submission of the documents

Fees for subsequent term is recognized as revenue only after providing online access to
course material to the students and receipt of fees for the term.

Revenue from Category B

For Services provided directly to the University by way of online access of course to the
students assigned by the universities, the revenue is recognized as per the terms of the
contract entered with Universities. We recognise revenue once the University provides the
list of students for whom the access needs to be provided in the LMS and login is provided
by Schoolguru. The students are free to use the course as per their wish thereafter. Revenue
is recognised once the service has been provided/provisioned to the student.

Employment Linked Skilling Program {ELSP)

ELSP Success fee is recognlzed as revenue onenrolment to the course, provisioning of the
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g) Perfomance Obligations in relation to Long term Contracts:

Company enters into Long term contracts with the universities, there is no performance
obligation outstanding in respect of these contracts as on the date of Balance Sheet. New
performance obligations will commence from new Academic sessions of the Universities.

h) Other income:
¢ Interestincome

Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate method {EIR}. EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability,

In calculating interest income or expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset {(when the asset is not credit impaired) or to thee amortised cost
of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired , then the
calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

* Dividends

Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive the
payment is established, it is probable that the economic henefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the company, and the amount can be measured reliably.

= Any other incomes are accounted for on accrual basis,

i} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences arising from foreign

currency horrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost,

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset, are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

jl Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of
transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the
year are recognised in the statement of profit and foss of the year,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as at
the reporting period are translated at the closing exchange rates and the resuitant exchange

differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured in
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k) Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, expected cost of bonus and
short-term compensated absences, ex-gratia, performance pay etc. are recognised in the period in
which the empioyee renders the related service,

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per
applicable regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Defined benefit plans

The employees’ gratuity fund scheme managed by LIC, is the company’s defined benefit plan. The
present vatue of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of service as giving
rise to additionat unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build
up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based
on the market yields on government securities as at the reporting date, having maturity periods
approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets, are recognised immediatety in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income {QCI) in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and toss in
subsequent periods.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan’s assets is reduced from the gross obligation under
the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obfigation on net basis.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit cbligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or toss as past service cost.

Net interest is calcuiated by applying the discount rate to the net definéd benefit liability or the fair
value of the plan asset. The cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of prefit
andloss.

Other long-term employee benefits

The liabilities for earned leave which are not expected 1o be settled within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period in which the employee render the related service. They are therefore
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employee up:to the.end of the reporting gadagd using the projected unit credit method.

-
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The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have
terms approximating the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to-defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur,

1) Share-based payments

Employees of the Company who are entitled to receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments {equity-
settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the grant date using
fair valuation madel.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that witl ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and at the end of the period and to be
recognised in the employee benefits expense.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is
the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An
additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment transaction or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any
remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

m) Income tax

income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss except to the extent that it relates 1o the items recognised directly in OCL,

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable profits computed for the current
accounting period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are

enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
at the reporting date.
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deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxahle entity and the same taxation authority.

n} Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an ocutflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

When the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost
in the statement of profit and loss.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements,

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements, unless they are virtually certain.
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Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
o) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or fiability

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable Inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

¢ Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted} market prices in active markets for identicat assets or liabilities

s level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly ot indirectly observable

+ Level 3 — Valuation technigques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
company determines whether transfers have occurred between fevels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy.

p) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any centract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financiat liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are initially recognised when the entity becomes party to the contract.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction casts that are
directly attributable to the origination of -the financial instrument where financiat instruments
not classified at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs of financial instruments
which are classified as fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the statement of profit
and loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified in the following
categories based on the company's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of cash flows:

+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value; either through OCI ar through profit or loss

s those measured at amortised cost.
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For assets measured at fair value, changes in fair value will either be recorded in the statement of
profit and loss or OCl. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model
in which investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
company has made an itrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for equity
investment at fair value through OCl.

The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business maodel for managing
those assets changes.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are

satisfied:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

e The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (sPP1} on the principal amount outstanding.

A gain or loss on a deht investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not
part of hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using effective interest rate (E(R) method,

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOC!)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent S7P1, are measured at FVTOCL The movements in the
carrying amount are recoghised through OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains and
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gain or losses which are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
joss previously recognised in OC! is reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss
and recognised:in other gains/ losses. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income using EIR method.

Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOC! are measured at FVTPL. A gain
or loss on debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not a part of hedging
relationship is recognised in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/ tosses in the
period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity investments

Al equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are measured at fair
value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to recognise subsequent
changes in the fair value in OCl. The company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an eguity instrument as at EVTOC, then all fair value changes
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are resegsized in OCh There is no recycling of the
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amounts from OCI to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of equity instrument.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, the financial liahilities are classified in the following
categories: '

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
¢ those measured at amortised cost

Following financial liabilities will be classified under FVTPL:
» Financial liabilities held for trading

¢ Derivative financial liabilities

+ Liability designated to be measured under FVTPL

All other financial liabilities are classified at amortised cost.

For financial liabilities measured at fair value, changes in fair value is recorded in the statement of
. profit and loss except for the fair value changes on account of own credit risk are recognised in
© Other Comprehensive Income (OCH).

_Interest expense on financial liabilities classified under amortised cost category are measured using
effective interest rate (EIR) method and are recognised in statement of profit or loss,

. Derecognition of financial instruments

. The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
© the financial asset expire, of it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
. transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
_asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retain substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
fender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the financial assets mentioned below:

» Financial assets that are debt instrument and are measured at amortised cost

« Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVOCI

» Trade receivables under Ind AS 18

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. Details how the company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk is explained in the respective notes.

ly practical expedient of
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providing expected credit loss based on provision matrix and does not require the Company to
track changes in credit risk. Percentage of ECL under provision matrix is determined based on
historical data as well as futuristic information.

q) Cash dividend

The company recogniées a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the
distribution is authorised and approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

r) Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial
year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

Diluted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider

e The after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

» The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

s) Operating reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
Managing Director that makes strategic decisions

3) Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of revenue, expenses,
current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, disclosure of the
contingent liabilities and notes to accounts at the end of each reporting period. Actuals may
differ from these estimates. '

Judgements

In the process-of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management have made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Operating segment

Ind AS 108 Operating Segments requires Management to determine the reportable segments for
the purpose of disclosure in financial statements based on the internal reporting reviewed by
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to assess performance and allocate resources. The
standard also requires Management to make judgments with respect to aggregation of certain
operating segments into one or more reportable segment.

The Company has determined that the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) is the Board of
Directors {BoD). Operating segments used to present segment information are identified based
on the internal reports used and reviewed by the BoD to assess perfprmance and allocate
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resources.
Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key scurces of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its estimates and assumptions on parameters available when the financial
statements are prepared, Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market conditions or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumgptions when they occur.

Defined benefit obligation

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value
of the obligations are determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and
future post-retirement medical benefit increase. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligations and extrapolated as
needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to
change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based
on the expected future inflation rates for the country.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in the respective note prepared
elsewhere in the financial statement. '

Income Tax:
Significant Judgements are involved in determining the provision for Income taxes, including the
amount expected to be paid or recovered in connection with uncertain tax positions.

Deferred Tax ,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences including the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits are unused tax losses can be
utilized.

Estimation and underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing hasis. Revisions to estimates
are recognised prospectively.
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4} Recent accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective.

A. New standard Ind AS 116: Leases-

Ind AS 116 was notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 30 March 2019 and it is applicable for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019.

Ind AS 116 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost
all leases on balance sheet. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and
finance leases and requires recognition of an asset (the right-of-use the leased item} and a financial
liahility to pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term
and low-value leases. '

The statement df profit and loss will also be affected because the total expense is typically higher in
the earlier years of a lease and lower in later years. Additionally, operating expense will be replaced
with interest and depreciation, so key metrics like EBITDA will change.

Operating cash flows will be higher as repayments of the lease liability and related interest are
classified within financing activities.

The accounting by lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the
new guidance on the definition of a lease. Under ind AS 116, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

The company is in the process of evaiuating the impact of Ind AS 116 requirements.

B. Amendments to other Ind ASs-

it Amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments:

The amendments notified to Ind AS 109 pertain to classification of a financial instruments with
prepayment feature with negative compensation. Negative compensation arises where the terms of
the contract of the financial instrument permit the holder to make repayment or permit the lender
or issuer to put the instrument to the borrower for repayment before the maturity at an amount less
than the unpaid amounts of principal and interest. Earlier, there was no guidance on classification of
such instruments,

According to the amendments, these types of instruments can be classified as measured at
amortised cost, or measured at fair value through profit or loss, or measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income by the lender or issuer if the respective conditions specified under ind
AS 109 are satisfied. These amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
company.
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i) Amendments to ind AS 12, Income Taxes:

The first amendment requires an entity to create a corresponding liability for Dividend Distribution
Tax {PDT} when it recognises a liability to pay a dividend. The liahility for DDT shali be recorded in
statement of profit & loss, other comprehensive income or equity, as the case may be.

The second amendment refates to tax consequence of an item whose tax treatment is uncertain. Tax
treatment of an item is considered as uncertain when there is uncertainty whether the relevant
taxation authority will accept the tax treatment of that item or not.

If there is uncertainty over tax treatment of an item an entity should predict the resolution of the
uncertainty. If it is probable that the taxation authority will accept the tax treatment, there will be
no impact on the amount of taxable profits/losses, tax bases, unused tax losses/credits and tax rates.

In vice-versa case, the entity shall show the effect of the uncertainty for each uncertain tax
treatment on amount of related items by using either the most likely outcome or the expected
outcome of the uncertainty. The company is in the process of evaluating the impact of Ind AS
amendments,

ifi} Amendment to ind AS 18, Employee Benefits:

The amendments to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits relate to effects of plan amendment, curtailment
and settiement. When an entity determines the past service cost at the time of plan amendment or
curtailment, it shall remeasure the amount of net defined benefit liability/asset using the current
value of plan assets and current actuarial assumptions which should reflect the benefits offered
under the plan and plan assets before and after the plan amendment, curtailment and
settlement. These amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the company.

iv) Amendments to Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs:

When determining the funds that an entity borrows generally, paragraph 14 of Ind AS 23 required an
entity to exclude borrowings made specifically for the purpose of chtaining a qualifying asset. The
amendments clarify that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related qualifying
asset is ready for its intended use or sale, it becomes part of general borrowings. These amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the company.
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